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The Rettger House

Clarksville

Private circa 1820

The Rettger House faces east on the north side of Route 32,
2/10 of a mile east of Cricket Creek Horse Farm.

It is a two bay wide, one room deep, two story high, gabled
roof (running north-south) brick (laid in English garden wall
brick bond) structure, resting on a stone foundation, with wide
brick chimney inset into its north wall, to which has been added
a reconstructed three bay wide, two bay deep, two story high,
gabled roof (running north-south) south wing, with wide brick
central chimney, south of center and twelve light, fan light inset
into the attic's south elevation. This latter section, constructed
in 1959 replaces one which burned in 1920, but left the kitchen
wing untouched.

East of the main house stands a cluster of buildings or
remnants of auxiliary buildings. A one story high, four bay wide,
one room deep, gabled roof (running east-west) brick (laid in
English garden wall brick bond) building is attached to an
interesting two bay wide, one room deep, intersecting gable roof
(running north-south), stone and brick (laid in English garden
wall brick bond) north wing - its south west corner is attached
to a two car garage, whose north wall, laid in English garden wall
brick bond, appears to be a part of a previous auxiliary building.

The house is believed to have been once the home for the
miller, who operated a grist mill on a part of what was once
a tract of land called "White Wine and Claret." On February 15,
1843, Major Henry Welling willed the property to his nephew Henry
Welling, who later conveyed it to his daughter Arabella Welling
Watkins.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Rettger House faces east on the north side of Route 32,
2/10 of a mile east of Cricket Creek Horse Farm.

It is a two bay wide, one room deep, two story high, gabled
roof (running north-south) brick (laid in English garden wall
brick bond) structure, resting on a stone foundation, with wide
brick chimney inset into its north wall, to which has been added
a three bay wide, two bay deep, two story high, gabled roof
(running north-south) south wing, resting on a cinderblock
foundation, with wide brick central chimney, south of center,
which replaces a previous brick structure, which stood here and
was burned circa 1920.

A four bay wide, one room deep, one story high, gabled roof
(running east-west) brick (laid in English garden wall brick bond)
building lies east of the house, attached to the north brick wall
of a two car garage, which may at one time have been used as a
north wall for an auxiliary building to this complex of brick
buildings and additions, the Rettgers' kitchen wing of which, may
well date to as early as 1710. A brick was found in the foundation
of this part of the complex, when a Gas and Electric repairman did
work on the house. Numerous other stories have also been related
to Mr. Rettger by other workers who have done work on the house.
The original structure's interior has been renovated to provide for
a modern kitchen.

This kitchen wing features stretcher brick, flat arched lintels,
projecting header brick sills and an east entrance door, in the
south bay, to which has been added a shed roofed, enclosed vestibule.

Fenestration for this section of the house is vertically aligned,
rectangular and double-hung, holding six-over-six-lights. The
north elevation holds one square attic window, while its west
elevation holds two first and second floor windows, similar to those
described.

Fenestration for the newer section of the house is similar, but
much larger and is proportionally scaled and vertically aligned
with the first floor, rectangular, double-hung windows, holding
eight-over-twelve lights, and eight-over-eight lights on the second
floor. The windows are decorated with stretcher brick, flat, arched
lintels and projecting, header brick sills and shutters. This
section also features a hipped roof hood, over both first floor
central bay window and north bay covered entrance on the east
elevation.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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The rectangular, paneled, east entrance door is flanked by
four side lights, separated and flanked by fluted pilasters and
surmounted entirely by a flat lintel.

A central, ten-over-ten light, rectangular, double-hung
window is flanked by a four-over-four light, rectangular, double-
hung windows in the east wall's central bay window, covered by the
tin hipped roof, which floods the study, located off the south wall
of the entry hall, with light.

The south wall of the reconstructed brick house features two
first and second floor windows, similar to those already described
and a central, twelve light, attic fan light, decorated with a
header brick, arched lintel and underlined by a row of projecting
header bricks.

The west elevation of the reconstructed south wing holds a
central, first floor bay window, whose central section holds thirty-
five (35) lights, flanked by six-over-nine light, double-hung
windows. This reconstructed section holds a one bay wide, one story
high, frame north addition on its north wall, which creates addi-
tional space for the very handsome living room, which takes up the
west half of the first floor. A central, four-four light french
door, surmounted by a three light transom, located on the north wall
of the living room enters on to a one story high, gabled roof
(running east-west) screened in porch, resting on a brick foundation.
The northeast corner of the reconstructed south wing of the house,
holds an entry hall and staircase, running along the north wall of
the entry with a lovely study, featuring the east bay window, placed
south of the hall.

The auxiliary buildings east of the house are very interesting,
combining old walls with new or reconstruction. The north brick
wall of the two car garage holds a central, rectangular, double-hung
window, holding eight-over-eight lights and is laid in English
garden wall brick bond, with its interior wall faced with cinderblock.
It is attached to the southwest corner of the four bay wide, one
room deep, one story high, gabled roof (running east-west) brick
(laid in English garden wall brick bond) house, which has been
mentioned and which features flat, stretcher brick lintels and
projecting, header brick sills, all of which decorate varied sized,
rectangular, double-hung windows. A central eight-eight light french
door serves as an east entrance and is flanked by eight side lights and
covered by a one story high, gabled roof (running east-west) screened
in porch, with north and south rectangular entrances.

The north elevation of this building, which now serves as an
additional residence, holds an exterior brick chimney in its second
east bay, a rectangular, double-hung window in its east bay, and on
its (second) west bay, a one story high, intersectine qable roof.
(running north-south) stone and brick (laid in English garden wall
brick bond) north wing, whose north wall appears to be new or
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reconstructed and which creates a "T" plan for this building
complex. A cement landing runs along the west wall of this stone
and brick section, from which rise four concrete steps to the
rectangular entrance door located in the south section's west end
bay of its north wall. An additional entrance to the stone and
brick section is located on its west wall and features brick rein-
forcement around the door frame.

This section is most interesting for the stone comes up some
four to five feet and then its walls continue in English garden wall
brick bond (excepting its newly or reconstructed north wall).

This was apparently a one story high stone building, to which
was later added, at a rather early time, brick for ereater heicht.

The entire complex is a total blending of old and new. A
stone foundation is seen beneath the Rettger's kitchen or original
brickhouse; while beneath the 1959 reconstructed south brick wing
of the house, apparently rests a cinder block foundation, which may
be only a facing for additional strength, an example of which is found
in the cinderblock, which faces the interior of the garage's old
north brick wall. This earlier brick south wing was burned in 1920
and not rebuilt until 1959.

Reported to date from the eighteenth century, this complex of
the remnants of older buildings, which have been adapted for modern
use is enhanced by the fine circular drive, stone retaining walls,
landscaping and trees which surround it.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Rettger House is significant architecturally and historically
to Howard County and the State of Maryland for its unusual assemblage of
the remains of some early nineteenth century brick buildings, which were
originally a part of a tract of land called "White Wine and Claret,"
located north of the homestead of Major Henry Welling. A grist and
sawmill was located on the northwest side of the Rettger House,
north of Cricket Creek. The miller for this grist mill is said to have
lived in the nineteenth century, kitchen wing of the present residence
of Mr. and Mrs. James Rettger. Auxiliary stone and brick buildings and
remnant walls incorporated into present buildings, lie east of the
present house and were part of this general complex. Almost all of the
brick walls of these buildings feature English garden wall brick bond,
sometimes, as in the case of the north wall of the garage, faced with
cinder block for added strength and support.

Historically a part of White Wine and Claret, by 1843 this
property was a part of the property devised, by the last will and
testament of Major Henry Welling, to his nephew Henry Welling in fee
simple, from and after the death of Sarah Welling, wife of Major Henry
Welling (Howard County Wills 1-41), On November 23, 1853, Henry
Welling, the nephew of Major Welling, by his last will and testament,
devised the property to his daughter Arabella C, Watkins. The
property then consisted of 180 acres. Arabella married Thomas G.
Watkins, the son of W. W. Watkins, first clerk of the Court of Howard
County. The wording of her father's will is of note, for it indicates
the trust of the father for his daughter's good judgment in the
following stipulation: 'for the sole and separate use of the said
Arabella Welling Watkins for, and during her natural life, free of
any disposal or control of her said husband and without being subject
to his debts."

This stipulation, however, was somewhat mitigated, for on May 4,

1870 we find Arabella in conjunction with her husband Thomas Watkins,
giving full permission to their trustee W.W, Watkins to sell some

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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property, of which some thirty-six (36) acres was sold to George C.
Zeigler on May 12, 1873 (30-229) (32-417).

The 1860 Martennet Map notes two buildings at this location
under the heading of saw and grist mill. Folklore reputes that a
man by the name of Mr, Miller lived in the house and was the miller
for the grist mill. By 1873 Mr. George C. Zeigler had acquired the
buildings and thirty-six acres. He is noted in this location on the
1878 Hopkins Atlas with 42 acres of land,

By August 24, 1949 a Frank Hanafee owned the property and
conveyed it to Jacob W. Parlette (212-279), Some years later, in
June 1961, Lenore Parneille and Bladen Jackson Parneille owned the
house and conveyed it to John and Ione Novak and Gilbert and Kathryn
Rannells.,

By August 25, 1969, the house was put up for public auction,
with Charles E, Hogg conveying the property toEsther Rettger, the
present owner,

~_ Historically and architecturally significant to Howard County, the
James Rettger House should be placed on the National Register of
Historic Places, the State Critical Areas Program, and any local
landmark ordinance the citizens of Howard County may seek to initiate,
should its owners so desire,

* Folklore reports these buildings to date from the eighteenth
century. Bricks marked 1770 have been found.
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